
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 

If you are reading these papers on an electronic device you have saved the Council £11.33 and 
helped reduce the Council’s carbon footprint. 

 

Pensions Board 
23 January 2024 

 
Time 
 

2.00 pm Public Meeting? NO Type of meeting Pensions 

Venue 
 

West Midlands Pension Fund, i9 Offices, Wolverhampton Interchange, Railway 
Drive, Wolverhampton, WV1 1LD 
 

Membership 
 
Employer Representatives Member Representatives 
Mark Smith (Vice-Chair) 
Paul Johnson  
Joe McCormick  
Ian Martin  
Jacqueline Carman  
 
Observer Member  
Steve Smith  
 

Julian Allam (Chair) (Unite) 
Stan Ruddock (Unite) 
Adrian Turner (Unison) 
Terry Dingley (GMB) 
 
 

The Quorum requires, at least one member from each category of member and employer 
representatives. If the Chair and Vice Chair are not present a Chair will be nominated by 
majority from those in attendance. 
 
Information for the Public 
 
If you have any queries about this meeting, please contact the Democratic Services team: 

Contact Fabrica Hastings 
Tel/Email Fabrica.Hastings2@wolverhampton.gov.uk 01902 552699 
Address Democratic Services, Civic Centre, 1st floor, St Peter’s Square, 

Wolverhampton WV1 1RL 
 
Copies of other agendas and reports are available from: 
 

Website  https://wolverhamptonintranet.moderngov.co.uk 
Email democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk  
Tel 01902 550320 
 
Please take note of the protocol for filming, recording and use of social media in meetings, copies of 
which are displayed in the meeting room. 
 
Some items are discussed in private because of their confidential or commercial nature. These reports 
are not available to the public. 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:Fabrica.Hastings2@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk


 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 
 

 

Agenda 
 
Part 1 – items open to the press and public 
 
Item No. Title 
  
1 Apologies for Absence  
  
2 Declaration of Interests  
  
3 Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 10) 
  
4 Matters Arising  
  
5 Pensions Administration Report to 30 September 2023 (Pages 11 - 20) 
 [To inform the Board of the routine operational work undertaken by the Pensions 

administration service areas during the period 1 July – September 2023.] 
  

6 Customer Engagement Update (Pages 21 - 36) 
 [To receive an update on the Fund’s customer engagement activity from 1 July to 

30 September 2023 and to cover future planned customer engagement activity in 
the context of the Fund’s Customer Engagement Strategy.] 
  

7 Risk and Assurance (Pages 37 - 46) 
 [To provide the Board with an update on the work of the Fund to deliver a well 

governed scheme.] 
  

8 Investment Governance (Pages 47 - 78) 
 [To update the Board on investment related matters, an update on responsible 

investment activities, together with the ongoing development of Local Government 
Pension Scheme (LGPS) Central Investment Pool.] 
  

 Exclusion of press and public 
       [To pass the following resolution: That, in accordance with section 100A(4) of the 

Local Government Act 1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting 
for the following items of business as they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information falling within paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A to the Act.]  

9   Pensions Administration System Transition Update 
(Pages 79 - 88) 

 

 [To provide an update on the progress of the transition 
of the pension administration system to the new 
provider Funding.] 

Information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including 
the authority holding that 
information)  Para (3)  

10   Employer Covenant (Pages 89 - 98)  
 [To provide Board with a relevant update in relation to 

covenant monitoring.] 
Information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including 
the authority holding that 
information)  Para (3)  



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 
 

 

11   Pension Fund Resourcing  (Pages 99 - 104)  
 [To provide an update on staffing developments and 

requirements to support the Fund service delivery.] 
Information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including 
the authority holding that 
information)  Para (3)  



This page is intentionally left blank



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 

 

Pensions Board 
Minutes - 17 October 2023 

 
Attendance 

 
Members of the Pensions Board 
 
Employer Representatives  
Ian Martin  
Mark Smith (Vice-Chair) 
Joe McCormick  
 
Member Representatives  
Adrian Turner  
Stan Ruddock  
Julian Allam (Chair) 
 
Observer Member  
Steve Smith  
 
  
Employees  
Rachel Brothwood 
Rachel Howe  
Simon Taylor  

Executive Director of Pensions  
Head of Governance, Risk and Assurance  
Assistant Director – Pensions  
 

Shiventa Sivanesan 
 
Paul Nevin  
Christopher Manning  
Hayley Reid  

Assistant Director – Investment Management and 
Stewardship 
Assistant Director – Investment Strategy   
Head of Finance  
Regulatory Governance Manager  

Laura Parker-Marsden Governance Support Officer 
Simran Chonk Graduate Management Trainee 

 
 

 
Part 1 – items open to the press and public 

 
Item No. Title 

 
1 Apologies for Absence 

No apologies for absence were received. 
  
 

2 Declaration of Interests 
There were no declarations of interest. 
  
 

3 Minutes of Previous Meeting 

Page 5

Agenda Item No: 3



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 
 

 

That the minutes of the meeting held on 4 July 2023 be approved as a correct 
record.  
  
 

4 Matters Arising 
The Chair congratulated the Head of Operations on the birth of her baby. There were 
no other matters arising. 
  
 

5 Customer Engagement 
Simon Taylor, Assistant Director – Pensions, presented the report on the Fund’s 
customer engagement activity from 1st April 2023 to 30th June 2023 and covered 
future planned customer engagement activity in the context of the Fund’s Customer 
Engagement Strategy. 
  
The Board were asked to note the member engagement and communication of the 
Fund, including the satellite support events, the rollout of the new pensions portal 
and roadshow events across the region.  
  
Contact volumes via the Fund’s member helpline were higher than usual, due to the 
range of communications issued during the period. Complaint numbers were higher 
than the previous quarter but remained relatively low against the overall scheme 
membership.  
  
The Board were asked to note that the next pensioner engagement forum would be 
held on the 25 October 2023.  
  
In response to a question raised around the uptake of registering to the new portal, 
the Assistant Director- Pensions was pleased to confirm that circa 30,000 members 
have registered to date, with further reminders to register being issued imminently. 
  
In response to a question regarding outstanding case work, the Assistant Director- 
Pensions advised that some case work is dependent upon receipt of data from 
employers and reassured the Board that data is monitored every quarter and that 
cases are escalated with employers where appropriate. 
  
Resolved: 

1. That the engagement activity and informed service development be noted. 
  
 

6 Pensions Administration 
Simon Taylor, Assistant Director – Pensions, presented the report on the routine 
operational work undertaken by the Pensions Administration Service areas during 
the period 1 April 2023 – 30 June 2023.  
  
The Fund saw a slight increase in outstanding casework due to work being 
undertaken with employers prior to a required close down of the system to enable the 
administration system transition. Additionally, more resources across teams were 
supporting on the testing and implementation of the new system. The Fund expects 
to see the impact continue as the new system processes are embedded throughout 
the year.  
  

Page 6



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 
 

 

The Board were asked to note three KPI’s which did not achieve 90% target for the 
period, despite this the teams did complete more casework in the same period than 
the previous year. On average, casework across the three KPI’s was completed 
within the timescales.  
  
The Board were asked to note that Committee had approved at the September 
meeting the 14 applications for admission of employers into the Fund.  
  
In response to a question raised around increased number of transfer-out quotes, the 
Assistant Director - Pensions explained that there is no specific drive for increase 
other than members wishing to access benefits at an earlier age, and that 
appropriate due diligence checks are carried out to ensure a transfer to a safe 
scheme. 
  
Resolved: 

1.    That the 14 applications for admission from employers into the Fund as 
detailed in Section 9 and Appendix E of this report be noted.  

2.    That the performance and workloads of the key pension administration 
functions be noted. 

3. That the development of the Fund’s membership and participating employers 
be noted. 

  
 

7 Risk and Assurance 
Rachel Howe, Head of Governance, Risk and Assurance, presented the report on 
the work of the Fund to deliver a well governed scheme, highlighting the current 
areas of focus in the management of risk across the Fund and reporting that Fund is 
alive to the ongoing environment as the Funding Strategy Statement is implemented. 
  
In response to a question regarding operational resilience, the Head of Governance, 
Risk and Assurance confirmed that work is ongoing in this area, noting that the 
graduate management programme continued to be successful, with a number of 
graduates obtaining permanent roles. It was further noted that the Fund is a PMI 
centre of excellence, is an ACCA employer and has retained Gold status for 
Investors in People. The Executive Director of Pensions explained that as there 
continues to be a competition for talent within the industry, the Fund continues to 
develop its people. The Head of Governance, Risk and Assurance also outlined the 
training and development opportunities alongside equal opportunities within the 
Fund. 
  
Resolved:  

1.    That the latest Strategic Risk Register and areas being closely monitored in 
the current environment be noted.  

2.    That the Fund’s Key Performance Indicators (KPI) and action taken to support 
service delivery be noted.  

3.    That the compliance monitoring activity undertaken during the quarter be 
noted.  

4.    That the statutory delivery of members’ 2023 Annual Benefit Statements be 
noted. 

 
  
 

Page 7



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 
 

 

8 Annual Report and Accounts 
Christopher Manning, Head of Finance, presented the report on the external audit 
and finalisation of the Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 
the Annual Report for the 2022/23 year.  
  
The Board were advised that the audit was in its final stages and that as per previous 
years, the signing of the Fund’s annual accounts will take place at the same time as 
the signing of the City of Wolverhampton Council’s accounts. The Head of Finance 
confirmed that last year’s accounts are now complete. 
  
In response to a question raised about preparations for next year’s audit, the Head of 
Finance gave an outline of the Fund’s planned meetings with the external auditors in 
order to be well prepared in advance of next year. 
  
Resolved:  

1.    That the delegation of the authority to the Chair to approve; the final 
Statement of Accounts, once the audit is completed, and the final publication 
of the Fund’s 2022-23 Annual Report, agreed by the Committee in June 
2023, be noted. 

2.    That the External Audit plan issued by Grant Thornton and previously 
circulated to the Committee be noted. 

3.    That an update on the Fund’s External Audit from Grant Thornton be noted. 
  
 

9 Investment Governance 
Paul Nevin, Assistant Director Investment Strategy, presented the report and 
provided an update on routine investment matters. It was noted that the new 
Investment Strategy Statement was approved in March 2023, with a 3-step plan for 
implementation over the period to 2025. 
  
In relation to the Fund’s responsible investment activities, it was reported that the 
Fund has retained signatory status to the Stewardship Code and the Assistant 
Director of Investment Management and Stewardship provided an overview of the 
outcomes of the Fund’s Responsible Investment member survey. 
  
The Assistant Director of Investment Strategy confirmed that the Fund submitted its 
response to the LGPS (England and Wales): Next Steps on Investment Consultation 
in October 2023. 
  
A question was asked around the overall effectiveness of investment pooling. The 
Assistant Director of Investment Strategy summarised that this has indeed been 
successful in delivering cost benefits and that the Fund is working with partners to 
now grow that success.  
  
Resolved: 

1.    That the update on investment governance matters including those in relation 
to responsible investment and the implementation of investment strategy be 
noted.  

2.    That the Fund has retained its signatory status to the UK Stewardship Code, 
following submission of its third Annual Stewardship Report to the Financial 
Reporting Council (FRC) in May 2023 be noted. 

  Page 8



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 
 

 

 
10 Regulatory Update 

Rachel Brothwood, Executive Director of Pensions, presented the report on the 
regulatory environment, potential forthcoming changes in legislation across the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) and the wider pensions industry. 
  
A brief discussion was held around the Economic Activity of Public Bodies Bill and it 
was confirmed that further updates on this will follow as the Bill progresses through 
parliament. 
  
In response to a question raised around potential lifetime allowance changes, the 
Executive Director of Pensions confirmed that any members who may incur 
additional tax charges as a result of legislation changes would be alerted to this. 
  
Resolved: 

1. That the developments within the current regulatory environment in which the 
Fund operates be noted. 

  
 

11 Corporate Plan Monitoring 
Rachel Howe, Head of Governance, Risk and Assurance, presented the report on 
the work of the Fund in achieving its deliverables and targets set out in the Corporate 
Plan. Key achievements noted include the re-accreditation of Customer Service 
Excellence and the re-attainment of Investors in People Gold standard.  
  
Resolved: 

1.    That the work undertaken by the Fund to work towards the goals and 
ambitions outlined in the Corporate Plan 2023 – 2028 be noted. 

  
 

12 Exclusion of press and public 
Resolved: That in accordance with Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business as they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information falling within the 
paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 
 

13 Pensions Administration System Transition 
Rachel Brothwood, Executive Director of Pensions, presented a report on the 
progress with the transition of the pension administration system to the new provider, 
Equiniti and roll out of the new system, Compendia, following provider appointment in 
November 2021, an 18-month development phase and transition to the “live” 
environment as planned over Summer 2023.  
  
Resolved: 

1. That the progress made in transition of the Fund’s core services following 
phased roll-out of the new pension administration system be noted. 

  

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC 

 
 
Recommendation for action: 
 
The Pensions Board is asked to note: 
 

1. The delegation to the Chair of the Pensions Committee to approve the revised Internal 
Dispute Resolution Procedure (IDRP) policy statement change as detailed in Section 5 of 
this report following the required documentation review and consultation. 

 
2. The 5 applications for admission from employers into the Fund as detailed in Section 8 

and Appendix A of this report, as approved by Pensions Committee in December 2023. 
 

3. Performance and workloads of the key pension administration functions. 
 

4. Development of the Fund’s membership and participating employer base. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 

Pensions Board 
23 January 2024 

  
Report title Pensions Administration Report to 30 

September 2023 
  

Originating service Pensions Services 

Accountable employee Simon Taylor 
Email 
 

Assistant Director (Pensions) 
Simon.taylor2@wolverhampton.gov.uk  
 

Report to be/has been 
considered by 
 
 
 

Rachel Brothwood  
Email  

Executive Director of Pensions 
Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk  
 

Page 11

Agenda Item No: 5

mailto:Simon.taylor2@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk


This report is PUBLIC 

 
1.0 Purpose 

1.1 To inform the Pensions Board of the routine operational work undertaken by the 
Pensions Administration Service areas during the period 1 July 2023 – 30 September 
2023.    

 
2.0 Background 

 
2.1 The Fund provides a pension administration service covering employer, customer and 

member services, data processing, benefit operations, payroll and systems/technical 
support. A report is provided to the Pensions Board on a quarterly basis to assist in 
monitoring the activity and performance of these functions during that period.  

 
2.2 Noting this reporting period straddles the go-live date for the new pension administration 

system, the content may be slightly different to those in prior reports, with elements 
continuing to be developed for future reporting periods. The key information is expected 
to remain consistent and will develop during the year. We continue to work with our new 
provider to develop and analyse meaningful reporting metrics for quarterly and annual 
reporting, ensuring comparability and accuracy of reporting. 

 
3.0 Scheme Activity  

  
3.1 Membership Movement – Main Fund 
 
3.1.1 The total number of scheme member records in the Fund on 30 September 2023 stands 

at 350,268 with an overall increase since March 2023. The long-term trend in 
membership continues to illustrate a move towards a more mature profile whereby, in 
general, pensioners and deferred memberships continue to rise by more than active. 

 
  Membership as at                                   

30 June 2023 
Net Movements 
during the period 

Membership as at                                   
30 September 2023 

Active Members 113,224  62 113,286 
Deferred Members 116,643 4,003 120,646 
Pensioner Members 116,643 -307 116,336 
Total Members 346,510 3,758 350,268 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



This report is PUBLIC 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.2 Workflow Statistics and Key Performance Indicators 
 
3.2.1  To ensure all member records and live cases were transitioned across to the new system 

we had a planned period of downtime on processing prior to go-live. This, together with 
our continued and ongoing internal training and development means we have an 
increased volume of work to process, which will impact our delivery against normal 
service standards over the coming months. Casework and statistics are being monitored 
daily across a suite of new processes to monitor volumes incoming and completed and 
aid in the review and allocation of work. Processing rates during the quarter to 30 
September were below the levels reported prior to go-live, with some improvement 
observed over October, November and December as experience improves and 
processes are refined.   

3.2.2 Member quotations and payments, which includes Retirements, Refunds, Transferring of 
benefits in and out of the Fund, are being prioritised including review of payments 
following member bereavement. This prioritisation is in line with an established 
escalation process, based on individual circumstances and responsive to financial 
hardship, and with redistribution of internal resources to support.  

3.2.3 Teams are focused on ensuring processes that include a payment are finalised for 
inclusion in the next available payroll. In addition, the Fund has also launched a 
supplementary payroll to ensure we can make payment of arrears throughout the month, 
allowing members to receive payments faster. All lump sum retirement payments are 
being paid as soon as possible (with up to daily runs) and an escalation process is 
available for the teams. 

3.2.4 This process for escalation and prioritisation will continue to be monitored closely over 
the coming weeks and months as teams become more familiar with the new system and 
management reporting tools and processing rates increase. 

Page 13



This report is PUBLIC 

3.2.5 Further information on initial processing rates and volumes is contained within the 
Pensions Administration System Transition update report. The Fund continues to 
develop reporting functionality to enable and track delivery performance aligned to 
established KPIs for use in case management and future reporting. 

4.0 Transfer Out – All Casework 
 
4.1 In total 19 individual transfer payments were made during the period, 1 July 2023 to 30 

September 2023, resulting in a total amount transferred of £1,189,542. This is broken 
down into the following categories: 

 
 

Type of transfer Number of transfer 
payments 

Value of Transfer 
Payments (£) 

Non Local Government 
Pension Scheme (LGPS) 

16 £1,077,914 
 
 

Interfund (LGPS Fund) 0 £0 
 

Additional Voluntary 
Contributions 

3 £111,628 
 

 
4.2 Non LGPS Transfers 
 
4.2.1   During the period, 1 July 2023 to 30 September 2023, 65 transfer value quotations were 

issued to members considering transferring their benefits out of the scheme (by way of 
comparison, in the prior year, 1 July 2022 to 30 September 2022 418 transfer value 
quotations were issued to members). The Fund continues to monitor any trends and 
increases in demands, as part of its programme of work to protect members from 
potential pension scams. 

 
4.2.2 In total 19 transfer payments were made during the period, 1 July 2023 to 30 September 

2023, (15 of these were to non-public sector schemes) resulting in a total amount 
transferred of £1,189,542, (in the prior year 1 July 2022 to 30 September 2022 a total of 
33 transfer payments were made totalling £1,285,971). The payments by value and value 
break down are as follows: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



This report is PUBLIC 

Value of Transfer 
Payments 

Number of Transfer 
Payments to Public 
Sector Schemes 

Number of 
Transfer 
Payments to 
Other Schemes 

0 to £30,000 9 2 
£30,001 to £100,000 3  
£100,001 to £200,000 2 2 
£200,001 to £300,000   
£300,001 to £400,000   
£400,001 to £500,000 1  
Above £500,001   
Total 15 4 

 
 
4.2.3 Analysis has been undertaken of the Transfer out requests to non-public sector or 

occupational schemes over the period of July to September 2023 to review the volume 
and trends. During the period, a total of 15 non-public sector or occupational scheme 
transfer out reviews were undertaken by the transfer panel, to a total of 11 different 
receiving schemes. There were 9 transfers under £30,000 in value, meaning members 
were able to transfer these payments without a requirement to take financial advice. The 
average age of members transferring out was 48 years with the main reasons for 
members transferring out was release cash/flexible draw down (members over 55). 

 
5.0   Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure (IDRP) Casework 
 
5.1 For the reporting period, two cases have been referred to Stage One which were partially 

upheld (two cases have progressed to Stage Two and are under investigation). 
 
5.2  A small amendment is proposed to the IDRP Policy Statement to remove the statement 

that unreasonable delays to payment of benefits can be raised as a dispute. This is 
because IDRPs are generally considered an escalation based upon decisions made and 
in accordance with the LGPS Regulations. As such, delays to payment fit better within 
the context of the complaints process as a means for member resolution.  

 
6.0 Pensions in Payment 
 
6.1 The gross annual value of pensions in payment to September 2023 was £641m, £15.6m 

of which (£8.8m for pensions increase and £6.8m for added year’s compensation) was 
recovered from employing authorities and other bodies as the expenditure was incurred.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



This report is PUBLIC 

6.2 Monthly payroll details were:  
 

Month Number Value 
£ 

July 2023 
 

                     
£94,594 

           
£46,382,763 

August 2023 
 

                     
£94,459 

           
£45,819,993 

September 2023 
 £105,947 

       
£46,915,708 

 
The September figure includes pensioners paid on a quarterly basis. 

 
7.0 Employer Membership 

 
7.1 During the period, the Fund has seen a decrease in employer numbers, with the overall  

 number of employers registered with the Fund standing at 803 at 30 September 2023.  
 Overall, there has been an 92% increase since March 2014 as shown in the graph 
below, however, for 2022/23 the rate of increase has slowed relative to previous years. It 
is anticipated that a more moderate increase will continue to be observed going forward, 
although the lower numbers since 2021 may in part be due to a reduced rate of 
outsourcing and increased employer exits exacerbated by the Covid pandemic. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

418 473
542

612 622 672 704 743 805 804 803

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

March 
2014

March 
2015

March 
2016

March 
2017

March 
2018

March 
2019

March 
2020

March 
2021

March 
2022

March 
2023

Sep-23

No. of employers

Page 16



This report is PUBLIC 

7.2 The employer base as at 30 September 2023 is categorised into the following employer  
 types: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.3 The level of on-going work being processed at the end of the period is as follows:  
               

• 79 admission agreements  
• 19 academies 
• 105 employer terminations 

 
8.0 Application for Admission Body Status 

 
8.1 Organisations must satisfy one or more of the admission criteria before they can be 

admitted to the Fund following approval of applications. Where applications need to be 
progressed outside of the Pensions Committee meeting cycle, Pensions Committee has 
delegated responsibility for approving such applications to the Executive Director of 
Pensions in consultation with the Chair or Vice Chair of Pensions Committee. 
 

8.2 There are 5 approvals requested from Committee in regard to applications for admission 
to the West Midlands Pension Fund, these are detailed in Appendix A. 

 
9.0 Financial Implications 

 
9.1 The report contains financial information which should be noted. 
 
9.2 Employees of organisations who become members of the LGPS will contribute the 

percentage of their pensionable pay as specified in the Regulations.  
 
 
 

 
 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

53 - Scheduled body 
(inc. district councils, 

parish councils, 
Universities, colleges)

217 - Admitted bodies 533 - Academy

Page 17



This report is PUBLIC 

10.0 Legal Implications 
 
10.1 The Fund, on behalf of the City of Wolverhampton Council will enter into a legally binding 

contract with organisations applying to join the LGPS under an admission agreement. 
 
11.0 Equalities Implications 
 
11.1 There are no direct equalities implications.  
 
12.0 All Other Implications 
 
12.1 There are no other potential implications.  

 
13.0 Schedule of Background Papers 
 
13.1 IDRP Policy Statement: March 2021 
 
14.0 Schedule of Appendices 
 
14.1  Appendix A – Admitted Bodies Applications December 2023 
 
 
 

Page 18

https://www.wmpfonline.com/sites/default/files/2022-11/internal_dispute_resolution_procedure_2021-22.pdf


Appendix A: Admitted Body Applications December 2023  

Employer name Guarantee Status 

(Agreement) 

No. of employees 

(Scheme members) 

Agreement type 

Status 

(Approved/pending 

approval) 

Solo Service Group Ltd - 
Walsall School  

 

Walsall MBC 1 

(1) 

Closed 

      Approved 

Alliance in Partnership 
Ltd (King Edward VI 

Academy Trust) 
 

 

KEVI Academy 
Trust 

19 

(8) 

Closed 

Pendergate Limited (St 
Pauls School for Girls)  

 

Birmingham CC 1 

(1) 

Taylor Shaw (United 
Learning Trust) 

 

United Learning 
Trust 

4 

(4) 

Closed 

Aspens Services Ltd (BOA 
Stage and Screen 

Production Academy) 
 

Birmingham 
Ormiston Academy 

 

2 

(2) 

Closed 

    

    

    

    

    

 

Pensions Administration Report Appendix A

      Approved 

      Approved 

      Approved 

      Approved 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC 
 

 

   

 

Pensions Board 
23 January 2024 

  
Report Title  Customer Engagement Update 
  

Originating service Pension Services 

Accountable employee Simon Taylor 
Email 
 

Assistant Director (Pensions) 
Simon.taylor2@wolverhampton.gov.uk  

 
Report to be/has been 
considered by 

Rachel 
Brothwood 
Email 

Executive Director of Pensions 
Rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk  
 

 
 
Recommendations for action: 
 
 The Pensions Board is asked to note: 
 

1. The engagement activity and informed service development. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21

Agenda Item No: 6

mailto:Simon.taylor2@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:Rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk


This report is PUBLIC 
 

 

1.0      Purpose 
 
1.1 To provide Board with an update of the Fund’s customer engagement activity from 1st 

July 2023 to 30th September 2023 and to cover future planned customer engagement 
activity in the context of the Fund’s Customer Engagement Strategy. 

 
2.0 Background 
 
2.1 One of the Fund’s key objectives is to engage to improve outcomes for our customers. In 

line with this objective, the Fund has published, and keeps under review, a Customer 
Engagement Strategy, to review satisfaction and help inform improvements to its pension 
services. 

 
3.0      Member Engagement & Communication  

 
3.1 The Member Services team continues to deliver member support via hybrid channels 

including member webinars, face to face presentations and following up with individual 
consultations as required. During this reporting period 1,294 members attended our 
presentations, webinars, workshops and other events. These were followed by 123 
individual member consultations. Our events are delivered at various times throughout 
the day to accommodate attendance around member and work commitments. This 
delivery and the associated feedback is summarised in Appendix A.  

 
3.2 During this reporting period the Member Services team delivered 3 satellite support 

events to 84 hard to reach members. These are members who may not normally be able 
to access our services due to the nature of their work and location, which might include 
access to web-based delivery (i.e., computer facilities), working hours or ‘satellite’ 
locations.  

 
3.3 The Fund continues to promote aspects of our work via the social media platform 

LinkedIn. Since the last reporting period a further 10,198 people have interacted with a 
variety of articles. This is 2,513 more interactions than the same reporting period for 
2022. 

 
3.4 The Fund roadshow vehicle hosted events across the region, visiting educational 

establishments and commenced our annual District Roadshow events. During this 
reporting period we visited 16 locations and saw 827 members. Feedback from these 
events was 85% of members rated them excellent, and 15% rated very good.  

 
3.5 During this reporting period the Fund’s member video suite, providing on-demand 

support and guidance to members, has been expanded to include new videos such as a 
tutorial video to explain the annual benefits statement 2023 and re-vamping our pensions 
portal registration/navigation video. 

 
3.6 The Fund continued to review and update our website, including revised publications, 

and we are also reviewing all website forms to ensure they are all fully electronic and up 
to date with current best practices and branding. 

 

Page 22



This report is PUBLIC 
 

 

3.7 HR 360, the Coventry Bursars group, requested a member presentation at their schools 
and academies business meeting on the 30 June 2023. Feedback was very positive and 
also led to several school business managers booking further support to assist their 
members. We also received several requests to deliver Pension Roadshow events.  

 
3.8 The Fund delivered its employer Mid-Year Review on the 4th July 2023. The event 

covered a variety of updates for employers and also an interactive employer panel.  
 
3.9  Website content continues to be updated and there have been 401,857 web page views 

in this quarter. This is up by 154,116 compared to the last reporting period.  
 
3.10 A new page on the website was designed called “System Transition Update”, this page 

provides members with useful updates and progress on our system change, along with a 
host of FAQs and signposting to further support. Bulk emails have also been sent to 
members to provide relevant updates on our progress and achievements. Since this 
page was created in October 2023, 2,409 members have interacted with it.  

 
3.11 Customer feedback is key to understanding our customer’s journey, highlighting our 

strengths and any gaps in the service we deliver so that we can continually improve the 
services we offer. Following a review of our ‘Post Event’ surveys to scheme members 
and the creation of a customer feedback dashboard, post-event surveys are now being 
issued to members regularly.  

 
4.0 Customer Services 
 
4.1 An overview of our front-line customer contact activity is shown in Appendix B. This 

outlines the variety and volume of support provided by the Fund to address members’ 
pension queries. An indication of the statistics for the previous year is included within the 
charts as a comparative measure. 

  
4.2      The most popular queries to our contact centre remain as follows: 
 

• Customers following up on an existing Fund process 
• Requests for Pensions Portal support 
• Enquiries about accessing pension benefits 
• Request for support with a Fund letter/form 
• Members updating their personal details 

 
4.3 Contact volumes have been higher than usual over the July - September period when 

increased member communications were issued, which included new pensions portal 
registration letters, Be Smart newsletter, aged 55 campaign, deferred benefit statement 
and active benefit statement notification emails and text messages. The Fund has 
staggered mailings sent to members, which helps smooth the impact on the contact 
centre and reduces call queues/written response times, allowing us to better serve our 
customers and reduce the number of chaser requests received. In addition, the Fund 
saw an increase in calls due to the new pension administration system and the reduction 
in benefit processing which has led to delay in delivering information and benefits to 
members. 

Page 23



This report is PUBLIC 
 

 

 
5.0 Complaints 
 
5.1 The Fund has a complaint monitoring framework, which enables regular monitoring and 

review of trends impacting performance. Where a complaint highlights an improvement 
area, this is investigated and monitored to help shape future services and improve overall 
customer satisfaction going forward. This mirrors the process undertaken for general 
customer feedback. 

 
5.2 Complaint numbers have continued to increase and are higher compared to previous 

years. 152 complaints were received during reporting period (compared to 57 in the 
previous quarter), of those complaints, 70% relate to processing delays resulting from the 
transition to the new Pensions Administration System and the planned period of 
downtime in July prior to go-live, together with ongoing internal training and development. 
The remaining 30% are related to Customer Experience resulting from increased 
customer contact, longer waiting and call handling times, and reduced service standards 
due to absences on the team.    

 
6.0  Employer Engagement 
 
6.1 Employer Peer Group 

 
6.1.1  The Employer Peer Group is a collaborative working group driven by the Fund and 

employer representatives to collectively facilitate future improvement and change whilst 
helping to shape the support provided by the Fund.  

 
6.1.2 The second session of the Fund’s 2023/24 Employer Peer Group cycle, following initial 

meeting postponement, took place on 18th October via a hybrid meeting arrangement; 
17 out of the 21 registered employer representatives were present. The nature of the 
meeting focused on the recent pension administration software transition, in order to gain 
valuable comments and feedback. As such, attendance was extended to one additional 
representative (per organisation) to include frequent system users. Outline meeting 
content included; 
 

• Functionality and processing within Employer Self-Service (ESS) 
Employer representatives reflected on their own organisation’s experience of the 
newly implemented system functionality such as navigation, processing and 
reporting capabilities within ESS, providing valuable feedback on system 
advantages, disadvantages and future considerations. Specific items addressed 
included matters relating to estimates, member change notifications, benefit 
processing and payment timescales, and additional reporting features. 
 

• Support available to employers in navigating ESS 
Referencing the support and guidance available on the website – videos, FAQ’s, 
troubleshooting guide, scheme packs, webinars etc – pertinent to the system 
transition, employer representatives outlined what worked well and recommended 
changes to support future improvements relating to guidance in order to support 

Page 24



This report is PUBLIC 
 

 

self-service. Employer representatives were reminded to refer to the website to 
obtain the latest version of supporting guidance. 
 

• Member experience (to include Member Self Service)  
Employer representatives referenced both primary and secondary feedback with 
regards to member experiences. The agenda segment included demonstrations 
from Fund representatives on additional screen views and employer 
representatives collectively suggested the introduction of receipt acknowledgment 
letters to members regarding the processing of pension benefits. 

 
6.1.3 The feedback obtained following the meeting has been shared and actions recorded with 

a subsequent meeting due to be held in quarter 1 of 2024 to update on progress and 
provide a wider update on general system developments. 

 
6.2 Employer Webinars 
 
6.2.1  With focus on the delivery of training specific to the system transition, the Employer 

Services team has delivered a reduced programme of employer education over the 
quarter with 5 virtual sessions delivered to 50 attendees (a mix of both employers and 
payroll providers). Combined, these individuals represent over 70 employers and 16,000 
active members within the Fund. The sessions are free to attend and provide a useful 
refresher for existing staff or as an introduction to processes for those who are new to 
Fund administration. 
 

6.2.2 Sessions delivered over the quarter are set out below: 
 

o WMPF Completing and Submitting your Final Statement 
o WMPF Employer Discretions 

 
 
6.3 Employer Engagement and Performance  

 
6.3.1 Utilising the virtual working arrangements currently in place, the Employer Services team 

have continued to hold performance meetings with various employers throughout the 
period, albeit at a reduced level to enable additional support to be directed towards the 
system transition project. Employer performance is assessed in line with the Fund’s 
Pension Administration Strategy (PAS). 

 
6.3.2 During the period the Fund held 4 meetings with organisations representing 26 

employers. Collectively these employers are responsible for submitting data and 
payments for over 10,500 members.   

 
7.0     Pension Administration System Transition Self-service Platforms  
 
7.1 Member Self-Service 
 
7.1.1 The new transition to the new Pensions Administration System brings a new and 

improved Pension Portal, with increased security to protect members’ data by introducing 

Page 25



This report is PUBLIC 
 

 

2 factor authentication and new and improved dashboards to display members’ 
information and benefits. To ensure members benefit from the increased security, each 
member will be required to register for the new Pensions Portal and the Fund has a 
rolling communications plan to support this approach. Throughout this quarter the Fund 
has written to each member with their unique code to register for the portal. During this 
reporting period 33,637 members have registered with the new Portal. Total registrations 
currently stand at over 50,000. 

 
7.1.2 The Fund is in the process of writing again in print to all of our Active and Deferred 

members who have not registered on the new site to encourage members to take control 
of their benefits. This activity took place throughout the months of October to December. 

 
7.1.3 A new member portal support package has been designed to assist members to register 

and navigate the new portal, this comprises of step-by-step guidance booklets, a 
registration video and Q&A and support on the website. During this reporting period 
157,667 members have engaged with this portal support. 

 
7.1.4 A suite of Pension Portal support is currently in design which includes member webinars 

to assist with members registering and navigating around the new site along with the 
opportunity to meet officers across the region face to face for help accessing our new 
member self-serve.  

 
7.2 Employer Self-Service 
 
7.2.1 Significant support continues to be offered to employers and delivered by the Employer 

team following the transition to Employer Self-Service (ESS), our new pension 
administration platform. 

 
7.2.2 In total, 7 online training sessions have been delivered to employers as part of the 

transition. Across the sessions we have seen over 160 attendees, representing more 
than 90 employers within the Fund. The sessions covered the following topics:   

 
• Reporting and Workflows 
• Data Submission 

 
7.2.3  Feedback received following the sessions was that over 95% of attendees were either 

satisfied or very satisfied with the structure, pace and clarity of the delivery.  
 
7.2.4 The team are continuing to support employers with queries regarding the new system by 

phone and email and they have also held 13 virtual meetings with employers to provide 
bespoke one to one support when using ESS. A plan is also underway to identify and 
reach out to more employers/payroll providers who we believe need greater support in 
these initial stages of go live. 

 
7.2.5 In addition to the online training sessions, guidance documents and videos to assist with 

navigation can also be found on the Fund’s website via the employer pages and also the 
dedicated systems transition page. A Frequently Asked Questions document has also 
been uploaded following analysis of common queries raised by employers post go live. 

Page 26



This report is PUBLIC 
 

 

The Employer Services team will continue to monitor the queries raised by ESS users 
and will adjust and adapt the support offered where appropriate. 

 
8.0 Engagement since 30 September 
 
8.1 Each Autumn the Fund provides Deferred & Active members with a newsletter which 

covers a variety of updates across the Fund, various important member information and 
covers topical issues in the LGPS. In October through to December the Fund has sent 
newsletters via paper print with a unique card to assist members to take control of their 
pension benefits and register for the Pensions Portal. A copy of the newsletter is also 
available for all to read on the Fund’s Website. 

 
8.2 The Fund offers bespoke member support to assist all employers with their individual 

workforce needs; we were approached by one large district council to request support 
with helping members understand the impacts that mandatory leave could have on 
benefits and also to show members how they buy back any lost periods. The Fund 
created a bespoke support package which included the delivery of several face to face 
and virtual events along with creating a video and an electronic leaflet.  

 
8.3 The Pension Roadshow vehicle has been on the road delivering roadshow events at the 

7 district locations across the West Midlands throughout September and October. 1,029 
members came to see us with pension queries. This footfall represents a 30% increase 
compared to the same district events last year. Extra resource was available at these 
events in anticipation of higher footfall due to members requesting pension portal support 
and help understanding their annual benefit statements.  

 
8.4 A total of 388 Pension Saving Statements were sent to members ahead of 5 October 

2023 where they had exceeded the annual allowance limit. The Member Services team 
followed-up on the issue of these statements with offering high earners the chance to 
book on 4 Pension Tax Webinars, which 206 higher earners registered for (this was 75 
more attendees than 2022). These webinars covered the changes to lifetime allowance 
and annual allowance along with signposting a range of support which is provided from 
videos to factsheets. 

 
8.5 From October to December 2023 the focus of the hard-to-reach project has been to 

provide face to face support to adult services, library services and Parish councils across 
the region. 

 
8.6 To encourage the further take-up of the new self-serve function, the Fund is developing 

portal promotion events which will assist members to register and navigate around the 
new portal. This campaign will consist of invites to webinars, face to face support at 
locations across the region and engagement with employers to increase their members’ 
portal sign up rate. These events are due to be advertised shortly and will be delivered in 
the first quarter of 2024.  

 
8.7  The Fund delivered the 2023 pensioner engagement forum, designed for pensioner 

members to provide their feedback and thoughts to enhance a member’s retirement 
journey for the future. Due to increased demand of attendees registering to be part of this 

Page 27



This report is PUBLIC 
 

 

event, the Fund held two forums, on the 27th October and the second on the 22nd 
November. Compton Care attended as a guest speaker along with a talk from Dementia 
friends. Pension Age and Alzheimer’s UK also provided literature to assist members on a 
variety of subjects. The group provided some useful feedback in regard to advertising our 
“Tea & Teach” events which we will act upon when promoting these events next year. 
Other feedback will be published in the “You said, we did” part of the 2024 pensioner 
newsletter.  

 
8.8 To support the ongoing transition to the new pensions administration system, on 16th 

November 2023 the Fund provided a tailored engagement session delivered to the seven 
local authorities, recognising their coverage of a significant proportion of the active 
membership. More recently, at the end of November 2023 the Fund issued a special 
Employer Briefing Note centred around employer self-service functionality and 
specifically the production of member benefit estimates. 

 
9.0  Larger Fund Events 
 
9.1 The Fund’s Annual General Meeting, was held at i9 on the 30th November. The event 

was well attended and discussion extended to a wide range of topical issues, including 
the Autumn statement, progress following the pension administration system transition, 
changing funding and investment landscape and ideas for enhancing the Fund's 
customer engagement. 

 
10.0 Financial Implications 
 
10.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report. 
 
11.0 Legal Implications 
 
11.1 There are no legal implications associated with this report. 
 
12.0 Equalities Implications 
 
12.1 The report contains no direct equalities implications. 
 
13.0 Other Implications 
 
13.1 There are no other implications. 
 
14.0 Background papers 
 
14.1 2023 Active member newsletter: Active Member Newsletter 2023 (wmpfonline.com) 
 
15.0 Appendices 
 
15.1  Appendix A – Member Service Team Presentation Feedback – 1 July 2023 - 30 

September 2023 
 

Page 28

https://www.wmpfonline.com/sites/default/files/2023-10/Active-Member-Newsletter-2023.pdf


This report is PUBLIC 
 

 

15.2  Appendix B – Customer Services Statistics 
 
 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



M
e

m
b

e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 T

e
a

m
 P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 F

e
e

d
b

a
ck

 -
 1

st
 J

u
ly

 2
0

2
3

- 
3

0
th

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

2
3

 

 

E
v
e

n
t 

R
a

ti
n

g
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
P

re
se

n
te

r 
R

a
ti

n
g

 

 

Customer Engagement Report Appendix A

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 33

FINS998
Stamp



Page 34

FINS998_1
Stamp




Page 35

FINS998_2
Stamp




This page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC 

04. App B. KPIs.pdf

 
Recommendations for action: 
 
The Pensions Board is asked to note: 
 

1. Changes to the membership of the Local Pensions Board. 
2. The latest Strategic Risk Register and areas being closely monitored in the current 

environment.  
3. The compliance monitoring activity undertaken during the quarter. 
4. The Fund’s Annual Report and Accounts which have been published on the Fund’s 

website in accordance with the statutory deadline of 1 December 2023. 
5. The publication of the Pension Regulator’s new Code of Practice  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 
Pensions Board 
23 January 2024  

  
Report title Risk and Assurance   
  

Originating service Pension Services  

Accountable employee Rachel Howe 
Email 

 Head of Governance, Risk and Assurance 
 Rachel.Howe@wolverhampton.gov.uk  
 

Report to be/has been 
considered by 
 
 
 

Rachel Brothwood 
Email  

Executive Director of Pensions 
Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk  

Page 37

Agenda Item No: 7

mailto:Rachel.Howe@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:Rachel.Brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk


This report is PUBLIC 

 
1.0     Purpose 
 
1.1 To provide the Pensions Board with an update on the work of the Fund to deliver a well 

governed scheme. 
 
2.0  Board Membership  
 
2.1 In line with statutory requirements, the West Midlands Local Pension Board consists of 

an equal number of employer and member representatives. The Board has a cyclical 
membership cycle with one member and one employer representative rotating on a 
biennial basis. This is to ensure the continuation of knowledge across the membership, 
while providing opportunity for new members to join and represent their relevant group 
(member or employer). Membership rotation normally occurs at the start of each 
municipal year, with seats confirmed at the first meeting in July. Mid-term nominations to 
vacant seats follow the Board's established appointment process. Please find further 
information in the Pensions Board Appointments Policy in the Background Papers to this 
report. 

 
 Member Representative  
 
2.2  In accordance with the Fund’s agreed nomination process, nominations for member 

representatives are sought from the three main trade unions of the administering 
authority. The Board have received one nomination for the vacant representative seat for 
Sarah Feeney from the Unison Trade Union, a panel has not been called to approve the 
nomination as the process has been undertaken by the relevant trade union. The Board 
are asked to note the nomination which has been approved by the Chair and Vice Chair.  

 
 Employer Representative  
 
2.3 Following the resignation of Paul Johnson, the Board’s Local Authority Representative in 

October 2023, and in conjunction with the Local Authority Finance Directors group the 
Board have undertaken its nomination process and agreed to the appointment of Andrew 
Felton to the Local Authority representative seat. The Board are asked to note the 
nomination which has been approved by the Chair and Vice Chair.   

   
3.0  Risk Register   
 
3.1 The Risk Register captures the potential for impact in the Fund’s service delivery as a 

forward-looking review, together with horizon scanning for changes which may impact or 
require change to the Fund’s processes and delivery model. As such, the risks are 
refreshed each quarter and the directional arrows therefore reflect the trend on the risk 
assessment pre and post actions and mitigations (as opposed to quarter-by-quarter 
comparison).  

 
3.2 This quarter the Fund continues to be alive to the current business change and 

transformational program and the impact this is having on the Fund’s customers. The 

Page 38



This report is PUBLIC 

Fund continues to work with suppliers to monitor and prioritise workloads to ensure the 
calculation and payment of pension benefits, with updates on pension administration and 
customer servicing provided in separate papers to this Board meeting.  

 
3.3 Ongoing national and regulatory change with the published outcomes of anticipated 

consultations together with the increased reporting and oversight has the potential to 
disrupt focus on value added activity where there is a lack of consistency in approach.  

 
3.4 Resource risk continues to be a focus for the Fund with the Fund’s ability to attract and 

retain key knowledge and skill in an ever-competitive market.    
 
3.5  The Risk Register is attached at Appendix A. The Risk Register was produced in Quarter 

3, 2023/24 and has been reviewed and restated for January 2024, as presented in the 
appendix. 

 
4.0 Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) 
 
4.1 Further to the transition to the new administration system, work is being undertaken to 

develop comparator reporting from the previous quarter (reporting from the previous 
system). Details outlining workload management during the transition period, workload 
volumes and delivery for the current period are covered in separate reports to the Board. 
The Governance and Assurance team are working with Operation Managers to build 
comparator reporting as understanding of the data and process mapping in the new 
system develops. 

 
4.2 The Governance and Assurance team are satisfied that there is effective workload 

monitoring and due diligence in place at this time to monitor and ensure timescales for 
current work are being monitored in the assessment and identification of workload 
priorities.  

  
5.0 Compliance Monitoring  
 
5.1 Data Protection  
 
5.1.1 This quarter the Fund are reporting three data breaches, a reduction of seven from the 

previous quarter. Analysis of breaches identified that each was considered low risk due 
to the nature of personal information released.  

 
5.1.2 The Governance team continue to monitor breaches and identify actions to improve 

controls. The Fund hasn’t identified any systemic issues in the management of its data 
and the Governance team continues to work with service areas to implement ongoing 
enhancements in systems and individual knowledge. Where errors have occurred, 
feedback and, if necessary additional training, is provided to Managers and Fund 
employees by the Governance team.  

  
 
 

Page 39



This report is PUBLIC 

 
5.2 Freedom of Information (FOI) Requests  
 
5.2.1 The Fund received five FOI requests during the quarter, all requests received by the 

Fund have been responded to within the statutory deadline. Information requests this 
quarter have focussed on the Fund’s investment activity, asset holdings and queries 
around procurement of contracts. The information relating to which are publicly available 
to requestors by alternative means.  

  
5.3 Subject Access Requests (SARs) 
 
5.3.1 The number of SAR requests received this quarter has decreased by six, with six 

requests being received in total. The statutory deadline for responses was met in all 
instances. Four of the requests received were from third party companies, with one 
request relating to members that had previously transferred out of the LGPS. As reported 
previously to Board, members are always made aware of third-party requests for 
personal data and the Fund always obtains consent from the member prior to releasing 
information to third parties.  

 
6.0 Annual Report and Accounts 
 
6.1 In accordance with the statutory deadline of 1 December 2023, the Fund’s Draft Annual 

Report and Accounts have been placed on the Fund’s website, a link to which is included 
within the background papers of this report. 

 
6.2  As well as being published in the Fund’s own Annual Report, the Fund’s accounts are 

included in the Statement of Accounts of the City of Wolverhampton Council (CWC). The 
Fund’s accounts will be certified by the external auditor, Grant Thornton, at the same 
time as CWC’s accounts, with the process for the 2023 year-end accounts due to 
complete in the coming weeks. It should be noted that the audit of the Fund’s accounts 
has been completed and the external auditor has indicated that an unmodified audit 
opinion will be issued.   

 
7.0 Publication of the Pension Regulator’s Code of Practice  
 
7.1 Pension Board will be aware that the industry has been awaiting the new combined code 

of practice from the Pensions Regulator, with the Fund engaging in consultations and 
roundtables since 2019. On publication of the draft code in 2020 the Fund undertook a 
RAG rated gap analysis of any areas of development to ensure compliance with the 
governance standards set and will now look to review and refresh that analysis in light of 
the formal publication of the new code.  

 
7.2 The new code of practice is due to come into effect in March 2024 with an expectation on 

schemes to review their existing governance standards in response. We will continue to 
update our Governing Bodies throughout the program of review.  

 
 

Page 40



This report is PUBLIC 

  
8.0 Financial Implications 
 
8.1 Effective monitoring of the management arrangements, facilitated by timely disclosure of 

information, is required to ensure the Fund is well placed to ensure the delivery of its 
administration, funding and investment strategy. Poor management of the Fund’s data, 
financial information and assets can result in additional costs and detract from 
investment returns. 

 
8.2 Failure by the Fund to meet statutory requirements of effective governance and 

administration could result in fines imposed by the Pensions Regulator (tPR). 
 
9.0 Legal Implications 
 
9.1 Failure by the Fund to comply with legislation and/or statutory guidance can result in 

enforcement action and fines from both tPR and the Courts via judicial review.  
 
10.0 Equalities Implications 
 
10.1 There are no direct equalities implications.  
 
11.0 Other Potential Implications 
 
11.1 There are no other potential implications. 
 
12.0 Schedule of Background Papers 
 
12.1 Local Pensions Board Appointments Policy 2023: Pension Board Appointments Policy 

2023 (wmpfonline.com) 
 
12.2  Draft Annual Report and Accounts 2022-23: Corporate information | West Midlands 

Pension Fund (wmpfonline.com)  
 
13.0 Schedule of Appendices 
 
13.1  Strategic Risk Register.  
 

Page 41

https://www.wmpfonline.com/sites/default/files/2023-07/Local%20Pension%20Board%20Appointments%20Policy%202023.pdf
https://www.wmpfonline.com/sites/default/files/2023-07/Local%20Pension%20Board%20Appointments%20Policy%202023.pdf
https://www.wmpfonline.com/about-us/corporate-information
https://www.wmpfonline.com/about-us/corporate-information


This page is intentionally left blank



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

R
is

k
R
e
g
is

te
r

O
ct

o
b
e
r/

N
o
ve

m
b
e
r

2
0
2
3

R
is

k
 

R
e

f 
R

is
k
 T

h
e

m
e
  

R
is

k
 T

it
le

 
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
D

ri
v
e
rs

  
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

ri
o
ri

ty
  

P
re

-c
o

n
tr

o
l 

R
is

k
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
 

P
o

s
t 

C
o
n

tr
o
l 

R
is

k
 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 

R
is

k
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 

p
o

s
t 

c
o
n

tr
o
l 
 

A
c
ti
o
n

s
/M

it
ig

a
ti
o

n
s
  

S
e

n
io

r 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

fo
r 

A
c
ti
o

n
  

1
 

R
e
g

u
la

to
ry

  
 

 T
h

e
re

 c
o

n
ti
n
u
e

s
 t

o
 b

e
 

a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
se

d
 f
o

c
u
s
 o

n
 

th
e
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e

 a
n
d

 
re

g
u

la
ti
o

n
 o

f 
L
G

P
S

 
F

u
n
d

s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 
a

n
d

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
in

g
. 
 

A
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o
n

s
 a

re
 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
/h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n

 
re

le
a
s
e
d

 w
h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 

th
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
to

 
g

e
n

e
ra

te
 r

e
a
c
ti
o
n

a
ry

 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

L
G

P
S

. 
 

 

 T
h
e

 F
u

n
d

 w
ill

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 

a
n
d

 r
e

s
p
o

n
d

 t
o
 b

o
th

 c
ro

s
s
-

c
u

tt
in

g
 i
n

d
u

s
tr

y
 t

h
e
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 
L

G
P

S
-s

p
e

c
if
ic

 c
o

n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
, 

fo
c
u
s
in

g
 o

n
 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 F

u
n
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

h
o

rt
 a

n
d

 l
o
n

g
e

r 
te

rm
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e

s
e

 m
a
y
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 

w
id

e
-r

a
n

g
in

g
 c

h
a

n
g
e

 i
m

p
a
c
ti
n

g
 

a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a
s
 

(a
c
ro

s
s
 i
n
v
e

s
tm

e
n
t 
a

n
d

 p
e
n

s
io

n
 

a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n

 f
u
n

c
ti
o

n
s
).

  
  

      O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
R

e
s
ili

e
n
c
e
  

 C
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 R

is
k
  

 P
e
o

p
le

 a
n
d

 
C

u
s
to

m
e

rs
 

 
 

 
T

h
e

 F
u

n
d

 c
o
n

ti
n

u
e

s
 t
o

 
m

o
n

it
o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 p

o
lic

y
 

a
n
d

 r
e
g
u

la
to

ry
 a

m
b
it
io

n
, 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 t

a
k
in

g
 t
h
e

 o
p

p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 

to
 e

n
g

a
g
e

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 L

G
P

S
 

a
n
d

 w
id

e
r 

p
e

n
s
io

n
s
-s

e
c
to

r 
to

 
c
o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 t
o
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
e

s
, 
th

e
re

b
y
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

 
p

ro
a

c
ti
v
e
 i
n
s
ig

h
t 
a

n
d
 v

o
ic

e
 t
o

 
th

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
c
h

a
n
g

e
 a

n
d
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
e

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
d

. 
  

A
L

L
 

 
 

A
u
d

it
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
e

x
te

rn
a
l 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

  
 

O
n

g
o

in
g
 d

e
la

y
 i
n
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
a
u

d
it
 

w
o
rk

 d
ri

v
e
n
 b

y
 s

y
s
te

m
-w

id
e

 
c
h

a
n

g
e

, 
in

c
o
n

s
is

te
n

c
y
 a

n
d

 
c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 c

o
n
s
tr

a
in

ts
 c

re
a

te
s
 

in
e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
 i
n
 F

u
n

d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 
  

 A
ls

o
 d

ri
v
in

g
 a

n
d
 l
e
a
d

in
g

 t
o
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

 c
h
a

lle
n

g
e

 f
o

r 
e

m
p
lo

y
e
rs

’
a
u

d
it
o
rs

s
e

e
k
in

g
in

d
e
p

e
n

d
e
n
t 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

. 
 

 

C
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 R

is
k
  

 P
e
o

p
le

 a
n
d

 
C

u
s
to

m
e

rs
 

 
 

. 
 

 
T

h
e

 F
u

n
d

 e
n
g

a
g

e
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

s
e
c
to

r,
 i
ts

 o
w

n
 a

n
d

 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

rs
’
a
u

d
it
o
rs

to
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d

 t
h

e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

ts
 

n
e
e

d
e

d
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

 
a

n
d

 w
o

rk
s
 c

o
lla

b
o

ra
ti
v
e
ly

 
w

it
h

 i
ts

 e
m

p
lo

y
e
r 

g
ro

u
p

s
 t

o
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 
 

  T
h
e

 F
u

n
d

 c
o
n

ti
n

u
e

s
 t
o

 
e

n
g

a
g

e
 w

it
h

 C
it
y
 o

f 
W

o
lv

e
rh

a
m

p
to

n
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

a
n
d

 
G

ra
n
t 
T

h
o
rn

to
n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
. 

H
o
F

 
 A

D
P

 

 
 

In
c
re

a
s
in

g
 f
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 

re
p
o

rt
in

g
 a

n
d
 o

v
e
rs

ig
h

t 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 t

h
e
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
to

 m
is

a
lig

n
 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 d

u
e

 t
o
  

e
v
o

lv
in

g
 m

e
tr

ic
s
. 
 

In
c
re

a
s
e

d
 r

e
p
o

rt
in

g
 r

e
q

u
e
s
ts

 
in

c
o

m
in

g
 f
ro

m
 

re
g

u
la

to
ry

/n
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
b
o

d
ie

s
 i
n
 

a
re

a
s
 o

f 
In

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t,
 c

lim
a
te

, 
fu

n
d
in

g
, 

c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
e

rv
ic

in
g
, 

w
it
h

 
lim

it
e
d

 c
o

m
m

o
n

 i
n

d
u
s
tr

y
 

C
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 r

is
k
  

  

 
 

 
T

h
e

 F
u

n
d

 c
o
n

ti
n

u
e

s
 t
o

 
e

n
h

a
n

c
e

 i
ts

 r
e
p

o
rt

in
g

 t
o

o
ls

 
a

n
d

 d
a

ta
 /

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 s

e
ts

 t
o

 
m

e
e

t 
m

u
lt
ip

le
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

, 
w

it
h
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
fo

c
u
s
 o

n
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

in
g

 
w

o
rk

lo
a

d
 m

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n

t,
 

A
L

L
  

Risk and Assurance Report Appendix A

Page 43



R
is

k
 

R
e

f 
R

is
k
 T

h
e

m
e
  

R
is

k
 T

it
le

 
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
D

ri
v
e
rs

  
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

ri
o
ri

ty
  

P
re

-c
o

n
tr

o
l 

R
is

k
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
 

P
o

s
t 

C
o
n

tr
o
l 

R
is

k
 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 

R
is

k
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 

p
o

s
t 

c
o
n

tr
o
l 
 

A
c
ti
o
n

s
/M

it
ig

a
ti
o

n
s
  

S
e

n
io

r 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

fo
r 

A
c
ti
o

n
  

 
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
d

is
c
re

p
a
n

c
y
 w

it
h
 r

e
p
o

rt
in

g
 u

s
e

fu
l 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 F

u
n
d

 f
o
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

 
p

u
rp

o
s
e

s
. 
A

d
d
it
io

n
a

l 
re

s
o
u

rc
e
 

m
a

y
 b

e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 f
u

rt
h
e
r 

e
n
h

a
n

c
e

 d
a
ta

 a
n
d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g
 t

o
o

ls
 

to
 m

e
e

t 
e
m

e
rg

in
g

 d
e
m

a
n

d
s
 a

n
d

 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
. 
 

  

e
n
a

b
lin

g
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 c
h

a
n

g
e
 

(M
c
C

lo
u
d

),
 C

lim
a
te

 
R

e
p
o

rt
in

g
 a

n
d
 S

te
w

a
rd

s
h
ip

. 
   

2
. 

E
c
o
n

o
m

ic
 

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t 
  

In
c
re

a
s
e

d
 c

o
s
ts

 i
n
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

. 
 

       E
m

p
lo

y
e

r 
b

u
d

g
e

ts
/f
u

n
d

in
g

. 
 

  

C
o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

liv
in

g
 a

n
d

 
in

fl
a
ti
o

n
 p

re
s
s
u
re

s
 a

d
d

in
g

 t
o
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

 c
o
s
t 
to

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 f
ro

m
 t
h

ir
d
 p

a
rt

y
 

s
u

p
p

lie
rs

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 m

a
k
in

g
 

p
ro

d
u
c
ts

 m
o

re
 e

x
p
e

n
s
iv

e
 t
o

 b
u

y
 

fr
o
m

 m
a

rk
e

t.
 

  C
o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 p

re
s
s
u
re

s
 o

n
 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
r 

fi
n

a
n

c
e

s
 i
n
 l
ig

h
t 
o

f 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
s
tr

a
in

s
 c

o
u
ld

 s
e
e

 
in

c
re

a
s
e
d

 u
s
e

/a
s
k
 f

o
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
r 

fl
e

x
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

/o
r 

fu
n

d
in

g
 a

n
d
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o
n

 c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
. 

 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
R

e
s
ili

e
n
c
e
  

 C
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 R

is
k
  

 P
e
o

p
le

 a
n
d

 
C

u
s
to

m
e

rs
 

 
 

 
T

h
e

 F
u

n
d

 h
a
s
 a

 l
o

n
g
 t
e

rm
 

o
u
tl
o
o

k
 t

o
 f
u

n
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 h

a
s
 

a
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 e
m

p
lo

y
e
r 

ri
s
k
 

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

fr
a

m
e
w

o
rk

 t
o
 

s
u
p

p
o

rt
 t
h
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
o
v
e

n
a

n
t,
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

e
x
te

n
d
e

d
 e

n
g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 
m

it
ig

a
ti
o
n

. 
 

   

A
L

L
  

3
. 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

d
e

liv
e

ry
/b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

c
h
a

n
g

e
 

T
h

e
 a

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 F

u
n
d

 
to

 m
a
in

ta
in

 h
ig

h
 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 d
u
ri

n
g

 p
e
ri

o
d

s
 

o
f 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 a

n
d
 

tr
a

n
s
it
io

n
. 
 

   S
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 b
y
 t
h

ir
d

 
p

a
rt

y
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 a
n

d
 

th
e
ir

 a
b
ili

ty
 t

o
 k

e
e

p
 t
h
e

 
p

a
c
e
 o

f 
c
h
a
n

g
e

 
re

q
u

ir
e
d
 i
n

 d
e

liv
e
ri

n
g

 
F

u
n
d

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 
o

p
e

ra
ti
o
n
s
. 
 

  

O
n

g
o

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

to
 

m
e

e
t 

c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
n

e
e

d
s
 a

n
d

 
im

p
ro

v
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

e
xp

e
ri
e
n

c
e

 
re

s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 s

h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 
a

s
 t
h

e
 f

u
n
d
 u

n
d
e

rg
o

e
s
 

tr
a
n

s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
c
h

a
n

g
e

. 
  

      T
h
e

 c
o
m

p
le

x
 a

n
d

 m
o

v
in

g
 

e
n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

in
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

 F
u
n

d
 

o
p
e

ra
te

s
 r

e
q
u
ir

e
s
 i
t 

a
n
d

 i
ts

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 f

le
x
ib

le
 

a
n
d

 a
b
le

 t
o
 a

d
a

p
t 
to

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

n
e
e

d
. 
 

  

   O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
R

e
s
ili

e
n
c
e
  

 C
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 R

is
k
  

 P
e
o

p
le

 a
n
d

 
C

u
s
to

m
e

rs
 

 
 

 
T

h
e

 F
u

n
d

 h
a
s
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

o
f 
c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

e
n
g
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
to

 
s
u
p

p
o

rt
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
c
u
s
to

m
e

r 
n

e
e

d
s
 a

n
d
 b

u
ild

s
 a

 
c
u
s
to

m
e

r 
e

n
g

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
p

la
n

 
e

a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

to
 g

a
in

 f
e
e

d
b
a
c
k
 

o
n
 t

h
e

 e
n
h

a
n

c
e
m

e
n

ts
 t
o

 
s
e
rv

ic
e

 o
ff

e
ri

n
g

. 
 

 T
h
e

 F
u

n
d

 e
n
g

a
g

e
s
 w

it
h

 
s
u
p

p
lie

rs
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o
u

t 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

h
a
n
g

e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 
a

n
d

 e
n

s
u
re

s
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e

 
c
o
m

m
u
n

ic
a
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t
h
e

 
ti
m

in
g

s
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 
n

e
e

d
s
. 

T
h
e

F
u

n
d

’s
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
a

n
d

 o
v
e
rs

ig
h

t 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

, 
e

n
s
u
re

s
 

s
u
p

p
lie

rs
 a

re
 m

a
n
a

g
e

d
 

A
L

L
 

R
is

k
a
n

d
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

R
e

p
o
rt

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

A

Page 44



R
is

k
 

R
e

f 
R

is
k
 T

h
e

m
e
  

R
is

k
 T

it
le

 
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
D

ri
v
e
rs

  
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

ri
o
ri

ty
  

P
re

-c
o

n
tr

o
l 

R
is

k
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
 

P
o

s
t 

C
o
n

tr
o
l 

R
is

k
 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 

R
is

k
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 

p
o

s
t 

c
o
n

tr
o
l 
 

A
c
ti
o
n

s
/M

it
ig

a
ti
o

n
s
  

S
e

n
io

r 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

fo
r 

A
c
ti
o

n
  

 
a

g
a

in
s
t 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
te

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

. 
 

 

4
 

R
e
s
o
u

rc
e

 r
is

k
  

T
h

e
F

u
n
d

’s
a
b

ili
ty

to
a

tt
ra

c
t,

 r
e

ta
in

 a
n

d
 t
ra

in
 

o
u
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 i
n
 a

n
 e

v
e

r 
e

v
o

lv
in

g
 e

n
v
ir
o
n

m
e
n
t 

w
it
h

 c
o

m
p

e
ti
ti
o
n

 f
o

r 
k
e

y
 

k
n
o

w
le

d
g

e
 r

e
s
o
u

rc
e

 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 a

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 

F
u

n
d

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h

e
 

lo
n

g
-t

e
rm

 s
u

s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 
o

f 
F

u
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 
d

e
liv

e
ry

. 
  

In
c
re

a
s
e

d
 m

a
rk

e
t 
d

e
m

a
n
d

 f
o

r 
s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 
a

n
d

 s
c
a
rc

e
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
, 

c
re

a
ti
n
g

 t
u

rn
o

v
e

r 
ri
s
k
  

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 b

e
in

g
 

im
p
a

c
te

d
 b

y
 h

ig
h
 v

o
lu

m
e

 
w

o
rk

lo
a

d
s
 a

n
d
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 

d
e
m

a
n
d

 o
n
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 
s
e

rv
ic

in
g
 

n
e
e

d
s
 d

u
ri

n
g

 c
h

a
n

g
e

. 
 

 

P
e
o

p
le

 a
n
d

 
C

u
s
to

m
e

rs
 

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
R

e
s
ili

e
n
c
e
  

 

 
 

 
T

h
e

 F
u

n
d

 r
o

u
ti
n
e

ly
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 

re
s
o

u
rc

in
g

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 
ro

le
s
, 

in
fo

rm
e

d
 b

y
 m

a
rk

e
t 

re
s
e

a
rc

h
 a

n
d

 b
e
n

c
h

m
a
rk

in
g
. 
  

 
T

h
e

 F
u

n
d

 h
a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

 a
n
 

e
x
te

n
s
iv

e
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
 

w
e

llb
e

in
g

 p
ro

g
ra

m
, 

w
it
h
 

c
o
a

c
h
in

g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 m
in

d
 

s
e
t 

fo
r 

s
u

c
c
e
s
s
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p

s
 

o
ff
e

re
d

 i
n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 

A
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 a
n
d

 
m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a
lt
h
 f

ir
s
t 
a
id

 
s
u
p

p
o

rt
. 
 

 

A
L

L
  

5
. 

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n
t 
 

S
A

A
/I

S
S

 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

 R
is

k
 o

f 
p

a
c
e
 a

cr
o

s
s
 

L
G

P
S

 I
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
P

o
o

lin
g
  

 

R
e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e

 i
n
 a

s
s
e

t 
a

llo
c
a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o
n
 

ta
k
e
s
 l
o
n

g
e
r 

th
a

n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
. 

 G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n
t

h
a

s
re

le
a

s
e
d

it
’s

 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
 t
o
 t

h
e

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o
n

 o
n
 

th
e

 f
u

tu
re

 o
f 
L

G
P

S
 I

n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts

 
w

h
ic

h
 s

e
e
k
s
 t
o

 d
ri

v
e
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 t
h

e
 

p
o
o

lin
g

 a
g

e
n
d

a
 s

te
e

r 
a

s
s
e

t 
a

llo
c
a
ti
o

n
. 

T
h
e

 F
u

n
d

 n
e
e

d
s
 t
o

 
w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 t
o

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 l
o
n

g
 t
e

rm
 d

ir
e

c
ti
o

n
 

fo
r 

L
G

P
S

 C
e
n

tr
a
l 
p

o
o

l 
  

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

im
p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
  

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
re

s
ili

e
n
c
e
  

 C
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 R

is
k
  

 
 

 
    T

h
e

 F
u

n
d

 i
s
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

iv
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
b

e
n
e

fi
ts

 o
ff
e
re

d
 

b
y
 p

o
o
lin

g
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 w
o
rk

 w
it
h
 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e
rs

 t
o

 
m

e
e

t 
th

e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 s

o
u
g

h
t 

in
 t

h
e

 d
e

liv
e
ry

 o
f 

th
e

F
u
n
d

’s
a

d
o

p
te

d
 I
S

S
. 

A
D

IS
 

A
D

IM
S

 
E

D
O

P
 

H
G

R
A

 

O
ff
ic

e
rs

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
fo

r
A

c
ti
o
n

 

E
D

O
P

 
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
P

e
n

s
io

n
s
 

A
D

IS
 

A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

A
D

IM
S

 
A

s
s
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 S

te
w

a
rd

s
h

ip
  

A
D

P
 

A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
P

e
n
s
io

n
s
 

H
O

P
s
 

H
e
a

d
 o

f 
O

p
e

ra
ti
o
n

s
 

H
G

R
A

 
H

e
a

d
 o

f 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
, 

R
is

k
 a

n
d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
  

H
O

F
  

H
e
a

d
 o

f 
F

in
a

n
c
e
  

R
is

k
a
n

d
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

R
e

p
o
rt

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

A

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC  
 
 
 

 
Recommendations for action: 
 
The Pensions Board is asked to note: 

 
1. The update on investment governance matters including those in relation to responsible 

investment and the implementation of investment strategy. 
 

2. Publication of the Fund’s 2023 Taskforce for Climate-related Financial Disclosure (TCFD) 
Report [Appendix A]. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

  

 

Pensions Board 
23 January 2024 

  
Report title Investment Governance 
  

Originating service Pension Services 

Accountable employee Paul Nevin 
Email 
 
Shiventa Sivanesan 
 
Email 

Assistant Director, Investment Strategy 
Paul.nevin@wolverhampton.gov.uk 
 
Assistant Director, Investment Management & 
Stewardship 
Shiventa.Sivanesan@wolverhampton.gov.uk  
 

Report to be/has been 
considered by 
 
 
 

Rachel Brothwood  
Email 

Executive Director of Pensions 
Rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk 
 

Page 47

Agenda Item No: 8

mailto:Paul.nevin@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:Shiventa.Sivanesan@wolverhampton.gov.uk
mailto:Rachel.brothwood@wolverhampton.gov.uk


This report is PUBLIC  
 
 
 

1.0 Purpose and Background 
 
1.1 This report provides an update on investment related matters and an update on responsible 

investment activities, together with the ongoing development of Local Government Pension 
Scheme (LGPS) Central Investment Pool in context of the implementation of the Fund’s 
investment strategy.   
 

1.2 The Fund has a longstanding policy of supporting good corporate governance in the 
companies in which it invests. The Fund will also challenge companies who do not meet 
either the standards set by their peers or reasonable expectations as measured by best 
practice. The Fund’s approach is part of its overall investment management arrangements 
and its active Responsible Investment Framework. There are three main pillars to the 
framework: selection (of assets), stewardship (of assets), and transparency & 
disclosure. The Fund’s Responsible Investment Framework incorporates four targeted 
engagement themes including Climate Change, for which the Fund has developed a policy 
framework and risk management strategy. 
 

1.3 LGPS Central Ltd (“the Company”) is a jointly owned investment management company 
established by West Midlands Pension Fund and seven Partner Funds to deliver 
investment pooling for the LGPS Central pool in accordance with the criteria laid down by 
the Secretary of State. The pool plays a role in enabling and supporting the implementation 
of the Partner Fund Investment Strategies. 
 

1.4 Investment products and services to Partner Funds are developed, supported, and 
overseen by the governance structures established within the Company and across the 
wider investment pool. The Shareholder Forum and Joint Committee each meet at least 
twice annually with the Shareholder Forum considering shareholder related matters such as 
the Company’s strategic business plan, annual budget and annual report and accounts. The 
Joint Committee is focused on the client deliverables of investment pooling, together with 
governance and oversight of pooling arrangements.  
 

2.0 Investment Strategy and Implementation   
 
2.1 As of 30 September 2023, the West Midlands Pension Fund’s market value was £19.5 

billion. The Fund has been progressing the implementation of the new strategic asset 
allocation as set out in the Investment Strategy Statement following the fundamental 
review which was concluded in March 2023. A three-step phased implementation plan 
from July 2023 to March 2025 has been agreed by the Fund’s Internal Investment 
Committee (IIC) following advice from the Fund’s Investment Consultant and the 
Investment Advisory Panel. Initial steps have been undertaken during the quarter to 
reduce the allocation to growth assets and subsequently increase the allocation to 
stabilising assets with interim benchmark weights being adjusted to reflect the 
implementation plan which will continue to be reviewed throughout the implementation 
period.  
 

2.2 The Fund continues to work closely with its investment pool company, LGPS Central Ltd 
to review the ongoing suitability of investment products and consider opportunities to 
transition assets to the pool where relevant.  
 
 
 
  Page 48



This report is PUBLIC  
 
 
 

3.0 Responsible Investment  
 
3.1  The Fund continues to engage with its investee companies and other key stakeholders 

through the partnerships it has in place. The Fund aims to protect and increase shareholder 
value by engaging on a range of financially material economic, social and governance 
(ESG) investment factors. A significant part of the Fund’s engagement programme is 
implemented through partnerships including the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum 
(LAPFF), EOS at Federated Hermes (‘EOS’ - via a contract held by LGPS Central Ltd, the 
Fund’s investment pool operator), the Institutional Investors Group on Climate Change 
(IIGCC), Climate Action 100+ (CA 100+), the Transition Pathway Initiative (TPI), and the 
Principles for Responsible Investment (PRI). 

 
3.2 The Fund’s engagement activity is monitored and reported to the Pensions Committee on a 

quarterly basis. Engagement activity includes a number of direct company engagements, 
on a range of themes, voting activity and working in partnership with other institutional 
investors. Activity and progress are included in published reports from LGPS Central Ltd, 
LAPFF and EOS at Federated Hermes. 

 
 Climate- related Financial Disclosures 
 
3.3  Climate-related financial risks continue to be of upmost importance in protecting the value 

of the Fund’s investments in the long term. Since 2020, the Fund has published on an 
annual basis a standalone TCFD (Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures) 
report detailing disclosures relating to each of the four TCFD pillars: 

• Governance 
• Strategy 
• Risk Management 
• Metrics & Targets.  

 
The Fund has undertaken its annual climate-related financial analysis for 2023, reporting 
progress against its ambitions and targets. As outlined in the 2023 report, to date, the Fund 
has achieved a 30% reduction in carbon intensity in its listed equity portfolio between 
December 2019 and March 2023. The Fund continues to work with its service providers to 
increase emissions data availability and extend carbon analysis to a broader range of asset 
classes where possible, aligning with latest industry best practice and standards. 
 

3.4 The TCFD was established with the goal of developing a set of voluntary, climate-related 
financial risk disclosures to help organisations better understand and control the risks and 
opportunities associated with climate change. The Fund has clearly defined its aspirations 
in relation to Climate Change within the Climate Change Framework and Strategy, which 
was last reviewed in 2021. Progress against targets within the framework are reviewed 
annually, with the next full review of the framework due in 2026/27.  

 
The Fund’s most recent TCFD report, which can be found at appendix A, was approved for 
publication by the Pensions Committee at their meeting in December 2023.  
 
Responsible Investment Framework 
 

3.5 The Fund’s Responsible Investment (RI) Framework sets out the Fund’s approach to 
integrating responsible investment across its investment strategy and defines the beliefs, 
principles and processes that underpin the work carried out by the Fund. As part of the Page 49



This report is PUBLIC  
 
 
 

annual review of the Responsible Investment Framework, the Fund is looking to enhance 
its policies and processes for monitoring asset managers’ integration of responsible 
investment factors.  

 
3.6  Following a review of the Fund’s existing engagement themes, and through discussion with 

LGPS Central and the Fund’s sustainable equity managers, the Fund is proposing a refresh 
of its engagement themes which are expected to run from 2024-2027. Further training on 
the proposed engagement themes will be provided to Governing Body members in March 
2024 ahead of the final version of the RI Framework which will be shared with the Pensions 
Committee for approval.  

 
 Member Communication Strategy 
 
3.7 The Fund is looking to integrate RI communications through its existing communication 

channels. This quarter, Fund officers presented at the Active Member Engagement Forum 
and created RI-focused leaflets to be distributed at the Member Roadshow events. The 
Fund also submitted a case study on its RI Member Survey to the Occupational Pensions 
Stewardship Council (OPSC) to share learnings and insights to the wider investment 
community. Upon further analysis the RI member survey achieved a response rate of 6.0% 
based on the members who received the survey, which is an increase in the response rate 
reported in the previous quarter’s report. 

 
4.0 LGPS Central Investment Pool Governance 

 
4.1 As previously reported to the Board, the governance arrangements for the LGPS Central 

pool include a Shareholder Forum (as the group of “owner” representatives) and the Joint 
Committee (focused on investment matters and client-side).  

 
4.2  The Shareholder Forum meets ahead of Company meetings (General and AGM) held twice 

per year, with the February meetings set to review the Company’s business and budget 
plans for 2024/25, in line with the annual cycle and collaborative pool process. 

 
4.3 The Joint Committee for LGPS Central last met on 21 July 2023 and will next meet on 2 

February 2024. The agenda, reports, minutes and questions are available via the Joint 
Committee hosting authority website; a link is provided within the background papers below. 
The Committee membership includes the Chair of Pensions Committee and Trade Union 
Representative Malcolm Cantello (Unison), Pensions Committee Member.   

 
4.4 In August 2023, the Department for Levelling Up Housing and Communities (DLUHC) 

launched a consultation on next steps for investment for Local Government Pension 
Schemes (LGPS). The Fund provided its response by the 2 October 2023 deadline 
reflecting broad support for the direction of travel on pooling and investment in illiquid 
assets and those supporting the levelling-up agenda. However, the Fund did raise some 
practical points on implementation and the importance of fiduciary duty to our stakeholders. 
DLUHC provided their response to the consultation late in November 2023, broadly sticking 
with their original proposals with some modifications reflecting our and other respondents 
comments. A briefing on the proposals and initial views of the Fund was provided to 
Pension Committee at the December meeting. The Fund will be cognisant of the proposals 
in its consideration of investment strategy and the implementation thereof, and in its role as 

Page 50

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/local-government-pension-scheme-england-and-wales-next-steps-on-investments/local-government-pension-scheme-england-and-wales-next-steps-on-investments
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/local-government-pension-scheme-england-and-wales-next-steps-on-investments/outcome/local-government-pension-scheme-england-and-wales-next-steps-on-investments-government-response


This report is PUBLIC  
 
 
 

Shareholder and Partner of LGPS Central, in order to look after the interests of the Fund’s 
members and employers.  

 
5.0 Financial Implications 
 
5.1  The cost for setting up and running the jointly owned company is shared equally between 

the Partner Funds. There are significant transition costs involved in unwinding and 
transferring as investment mandates into new collective investment vehicles. Transition 
costs are shared between the Partner Funds on a fair and equitable basis and are incurred 
when assets are transitioned.  

  
5.2 West Midlands Pension Fund’s share of all costs (including the regulatory capital provided 

to LGPS Central Ltd) are met from the Fund, and there is therefore no direct impact on the 
administering authority’s revenue or capital budgets and no impact on member benefits.  

  
5.3  All cost sharing principles together with financial modelling of the operational costs and  

fee models are monitored by Partner Funds.   
 
6.0  Legal Implications 

 
6.1 The requirement to pool Fund investments is a requirement of law, failure to work 

collaboratively and meet the Government’s criteria for delivery may result in Government 
intervention.  

 
7.0  Equalities Implications 
 
7.1 There are no direct equalities implications arising as a result of this report. 
 
8.0 All Other Implications 
 
8.1 There are no other implications arising as a result of this report. 
 
9.0 Schedule of Background Papers 
 
9.1 LGPS Central Joint Committee agendas, papers and questions: Meetings and Agendas | 

Members (cheshirepensionfund.org) 
 
9.2 Local Government Pension Scheme (England and Wales): Next Steps on Investments 

Consultation Outcome: Local Government Pension Scheme (England and Wales): Next 
steps on investments - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 

 
9.3 Local Government Pension Scheme (England and Wales): Next Steps on Investments – 

Government Response: Local Government Pension Scheme (England and Wales): Next 
steps on investments - government response - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)  

 
10.0 Schedule of Appendices 
 
10.1 Appendix A- Taskforce for Climate-related Financial Disclosure Report. 
 

Page 51

https://www.cheshirepensionfund.org/members/about-us/how-we-manage-the-fund/governance-structure/pfc/
https://www.cheshirepensionfund.org/members/about-us/how-we-manage-the-fund/governance-structure/pfc/
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/local-government-pension-scheme-england-and-wales-next-steps-on-investments/local-government-pension-scheme-england-and-wales-next-steps-on-investments
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/local-government-pension-scheme-england-and-wales-next-steps-on-investments/local-government-pension-scheme-england-and-wales-next-steps-on-investments
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/local-government-pension-scheme-england-and-wales-next-steps-on-investments/outcome/local-government-pension-scheme-england-and-wales-next-steps-on-investments-government-response
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/local-government-pension-scheme-england-and-wales-next-steps-on-investments/outcome/local-government-pension-scheme-england-and-wales-next-steps-on-investments-government-response


This page is intentionally left blank





























































P
re

p
a

re
d

 in
 a

li
g

n
m

en
t 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

re
co

m
m

en
d

a
ti

o
n

s 
o

f 
th

e
  

Ta
sk

 F
o

rc
e
 o

n
 C

li
m

a
te

-R
e
la

te
d

 F
in

a
n

ci
a

l 
D

is
cl

o
su

re
s.

  
 R

ep
o

rt
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 in

 c
o

ll
a

b
o

ra
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 L

G
P
S
 C

e
n

tr
a

l 
Li

m
it

ed
.














Page 53































































 






























































































































































































































 





































































































 









































































































































 



































































































Page 54










































































































































































































 






























































































































































































































































































































 






























































































































































































































































































































































































































































Page 55









































































































































































































































































 










































































































































 
























































































































































































































































































































 















































































































































































































































































Page 56



            



































































































































































































































































































 








































































































































































































































































 


















































































































































































































































































































































































Page 57




























































































































































































































































































































































































































































































Page 58


















































































































































































              



































































































































































































































































































































 



























































































































 

















































































































 


































































































































 









































































































































































































































































































































































Page 59



                            

                            














































































































































































 




































































































































































































































































 


 
































































































































































   4
6
5




















   7
4
2
























   2
7
7































































Page 60











































































































































































































































































































































 


















































































































































































 
































































































































































































































































































        














































Page 61



A
ss

e
ss

m
en

t













































































































































































































































 


























































































































































































































































 M
a
n

a
ge

m
e
n

t
















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































Page 62



       













































































































































































































































































































































 




































































































































































































































 

































































































































































































 




































































































































 
























































































































































































 





















































































































 




















































































  














































































































































































































































































Page 63
































































































































 




















































            






























































































































































































































































































































































































































 






























































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 
















































































































































































































































   




























































































































































































































































































































































Page 64













































































































































                                   



















































































































































































































 

























































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































Page 65






























































































     





































































































































































































































































































 






















































































































































































 


















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































Page 66



















































































            























 























































 
















































 









































































































 




































 






























 



























































































    





















































































































































































































































 



























































































































































































































































































































































































 



































































































































































































































































      


































































































































































































































































































































































Page 67











































































































































































































































 



















































































































Page 68







































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































17

































Page 69
















































































































































































































































































 





































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 





















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 



















































































































































































Page 70



























































































































































 

































































































































 












































































































































 












































 








































 

















 




















 
















 










































































































































































































 


 








































 
 


























































































Page 71





















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































      























































































































































































































           






































 



































































Page 72





























































































































































































































































































































































































































































































Page 73


























































































































 













































































































































 










































































































































































 











































































































 

























































































































































 














































































































































































































































































































































































                        

                                 

  
 


























































































Page 74















































































































































































































 































































 





U

n
aw

a
re

 o
f 

(o
r 

n
o

t 
A

ck
n

o
w

le
d

gi
n

g
) 

C
li
m

a
te

 C
h

a
n

ge
 a

s 
a
 B

u
si

n
es

s 
Is

su
e






A

ck
n

o
w

le
d

gi
n

g 
C

li
m

a
te

 C
h

a
n

ge
 a

s 
a
 

B
u

si
n

es
s 

Is
su

e:
 



































































































































































B

u
il
d

in
g 

C
a

p
a

ci
ty

:























































































In

te
gr

a
ti

n
g 

in
to

 O
p

er
a

ti
o

n
a
l D

ec
is

io
n

-
M

a
ki

n
g:










































































































S

tr
a
te

gi
c 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t:












































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 








































































































































































































Page 75



D
e
sc

ri
b

e
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 u
se

d
 

b
y
 t

h
e
 o

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 t
o

  
m

a
n

a
g

e
 c

li
m

a
te

-r
e
la

te
d

 
ri

sk
s 

a
n

d
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
 

a
n

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 a

g
a
in

st
 

ta
rg

e
ts

. 

T
C

F
D

 R
E

C
O

M
M

E
N

D
E

D
  

D
IS

C
L

O
S

U
R

E
: 

M
E

T
R

IC
S

 A
N

D
 T

A
R

G
E

T
S

W
M

P
F

 i
s 

fu
ll

y
 c

o
m

m
it

te
d

 t
o

 a
li

g
n

in
g

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 

g
o

a
ls

 o
f 

th
e

 P
a

ri
s 

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 n

e
t 

z
e

ro
  

a
m

b
it

io
n

 b
y

 2
0

5
0

 o
r 

so
o

n
e

r.
  

 









C

li
m

a
te

 C
h

a
n

ge
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
n

d
  

S
tr

a
te

g
y



























































































 





C

li
m

a
te

 C
h

a
n

ge
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 S

tr
a
te

g
y 

























            




























































































            








































































































































































































































2
4


























































   5
0

%




















































































   6
0

%







































































































Page 76



C
a
rb

o
n

 F
o

o
tp

ri
n

t/
P

o
rt

fo
lio

 C
ar

b
o

n
 F

o
o

tp
ri

n
t


























































































































































































 C
le

an
 T

ec
h

n
o

lo
g
y/

W
ei

gh
t 

in
 C

le
an

 T
ec

h
n

o
lo

g
y









































































































































































 C
lim

a
te

 S
o

lu
ti

o
n

s












































































































 En
ga

ge
m

en
t



























































































































 ES
G

 F
ac

to
rs

















































































 Fo
ss

il 
Fu

el
 R

es
er

ve
s/

W
ei

gh
t 

in
 F

o
ss

il
 F

u
el

 R
e
se

rv
es














































  

Ju
st

 T
ra

n
si

ti
o

n














































































































































 N
et

 Z
er

o
 E

m
is

si
o

n
s













































































































 N
et

 Z
er

o
 T

a
rg

et
 C

o
ve

ra
ge











































































 P
a

ri
s 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t























































































































 P
h

ys
ic

a
l R

is
k/

C
lim

at
e 

P
h

ys
ic

a
l R

is
k













































































































































 R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 In
ve

st
m

en
t











































































































    

Sc
o

p
e 

1 
G

re
en

h
o

u
se

 G
a
s 

Em
is

si
o

n
s

























































































































 Sc
o

p
e 

2 
G

re
e
n

h
o

u
se

 G
as

 E
m

is
si

o
n

s









































 Sc
o

p
e 

3 
G

re
en

h
o

u
se

 G
a
s 

Em
is

si
o

n
s































































































































 St
ew

a
rd

sh
ip









































































































 Th
er

m
a
l C

o
al

 R
es

er
ve

s/
W

ei
gh

t 
in

 T
h

er
m

a
l  

C
o

a
l R

es
er

ve
s
















































 Tr
a
n

si
ti

o
n

 R
is

k

















































































































































 V
o

ti
n

g







































































































































Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 79

Agenda Item No: 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 89

Agenda Item No: 10



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 95



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 99

Agenda Item No: 11



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	5 Pensions Administration Report to 30 September 2023
	Appendix A – Admitted Bodies Applications December 2023

	6 Customer Engagement Update
	Appendix A – Member Service Team Presentation Feedback – 1 July 2023 - 30 September 2023
	Appendix B – Customer Services Statistics

	7 Risk and Assurance
	Strategic Risk Register

	8 Investment Governance
	Appendix A- Taskforce for Climate-related Financial Disclosure Report

	9 Pensions Administration System Transition Update
	10 Employer Covenant
	Appendix A - Employer Briefing Note: approach towards surplus

	11 Pension Fund Resourcing



